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  [9.32 am] 

 

SJH:   Yes, good morning. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Good morning, sir. 5 

 

SJH:   All right, we will start by recording appearances but before I do that can 

I just explain to anyone submitters who are here today who have not 

taken part previously in these hearings that this is not a hearing today 

about merits, it is simply a procedural hearing where we make 10 

directions regarding the filing of evidence, matters such as cross-

examination, matters such as mediation, expert conferencing and also 

setting down hearing dates and dates for filing of evidence and such 

like.   

 15 

 So I will record firstly counsel appearing and then we will go through 

the submitters who are here at the back of the room.  So, Ms Scott, you 

are appearing for the Council? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, good morning, sir. 20 

 

SJH:   Mr Carranceja, you are for the Crown? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, thank you. 

 25 

SJH:   Ms Mehlhopt, for the Regional Council? 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, sir, and also the joint further submission of the 

Regional Council, Selwyn and Waimakariri District Councils and 

Ngāi Tahu. 30 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Crawford? 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Yes, sir, for Castle Rock Limited who appeared yesterday 

in relation to the Commercial and Industrial matters.  And, sir, just 35 

while I am on my feet, a procedural matter arose subsequent yesterday 

it occurred to me that I entered an appearance for Silver Fern Farms 

and Kennaway who are both industrial clients but in relation to stage 2 

their interests are limited to the general provisions and I apologise for 

that and I will clarify that at the pre-hearing on Monday. 40 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Thank you, sir.  

 45 

SJH:   Mr Rogers?  
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MR ROGERS:   Yes, sir, appear for Fulton Hogan Land Development Limited, 

sir.  

 5 

SJH:   Mr Schulte?  

 

MR SCHULTE:   Yes, I appear for Mr Brent Falvey who is an individual 

submitter 2250.  

 10 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Nicol?  

 

MS NICOL:   Christchurch International Airport, Lyttelton Port Company, 

Orion and Waterloo, sir.  

 15 

SJH:   All right.  Now, I am sorry, I don’t have your name.  

 

MR BURKE:   Burke, sir.  

 

SJH:   Sorry?  20 

 

MR BURKE:   Burke, B-u-r-k-e, I appear for Mr and Mrs McVicar, 

submission No 2362.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Semple?  25 

 

MS SEMPLE:   Thank you, sir, I appear for Kauri Lodge, Carter Group 

Limited, Oakvale Farm Limited, Ilam Park Limited, Riccarton 

Racecourse and CDL Land.  

 30 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Robinson?  

 

MS ROBINSON:   Thank you, sir, I appear for a joint submission from 

Christ’s College and McVicar, the Commodore Hotel and the Illogan 

Trust.  35 

 

  [9.35 am] 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Professor Bagchi, you are here for your Avonside 

Community?  40 

 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   Yes, sir.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  All right, well, if you would start at the right hand side and 

we will move through. 45 
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MS ASTON:   Fiona Aston here for RBB Limited, Cathedral City 

Developments Limited, Rock Hill Limited, Bassett and Talbot, 

G Burrell, Survus and Jeremy Thomas.   

 

SJH:   Thank you.  5 

 

MS DYSART:   Sir, I am Marie Dysart, I am - - - 

 

SJH:   Sorry, the name is?  

 10 

MS DYSART:   Marie Dysart, D-y - - - 

 

SJH:   D-y-s-a-r-t?  

 

MS DYSART:   Yes, sir.  15 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

MS DYSART:   I am submitter 2451, sir.  

 20 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

MR VAN DER WAL:   May it please the Panel my name is JM van der Wal, 

submitter 2167, I appear for myself.  

 25 

SJH:   Thank you Mr van der Wal.  

 

MR O’DONNELL:   I am Mick O’Donnell, submitter 2493, here on behalf of 

the Little River Issues Working Party, thank you, sir.  

 30 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

MR JOEL:   Thank you, sir, Tim Joel here on behalf of Christchurch Methodist 

Central Mission, Jiang Nan Investments Limited and Top Maple 

Investments Limited.  35 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 

MR CAMERON:   Sir, my name is Cameron, submitter 2730.  

 40 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

MR SITARZ:   Ken Sitarz, submitter 2010.  

 

SJH:   Sorry, the name?  45 

 

MR SITARZ:   Ken Sitarz.  
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SJH:   Could you spell that please?  

 

MR SITARZ:   S-i-t-a-r-z.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  5 

 

MR SIMCOCK:   My name is Kevin Simcock, I am here on behalf of Virginia 

Simcock, submitter No 2053.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  10 

 

MR SIMCOCK:   Thank you.  

 

MR POULTNEY:   Good morning my name is Grant Poultney, submitter No - 

- - 15 

 

SJH:   Spell the name please.  

 

MR POULTNEY:   P-o-u-l-t-n-e-y.  

 20 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

MR POULTNEY:   Submitter No 2190.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  25 

 

MR HARDING:   Good morning, sir, Peter Harding, the Ilam and Upper 

Riccarton Residents Association.  

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Harding.  Would you just do the table in front too 30 

because there is a couple of submitters there I think before we go to the 

second row.  

 

MR KRISTINSSON.   Good morning, sir, my name is Hugo Kristinsson, I am 

submitter No 2498, I represent South Brighton Residents Association 35 

and Empowered Christchurch.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Good morning, my name is Helen Broughton, I am 40 

representing the Riccarton Wigram Community Board 2363 and I have 

put in a personal submission which is 2563. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  If we then go to the second row please. 

 45 

MS HARTE:   My name is Patricia Harte, I am here for Summerset Group, 

Mark Shadbolt and Sunny Points Estate. 
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SJH:   Thank you, Ms Harte. 

 

MR PORTER:   Hello, I am Mark Porter, submitter 2139, myself. 

 5 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Porter. 

 

MR SULLIVAN:   I am Mark Sullivan, I am here for submission No 2155, a 

joint submission of the Christchurch Amateur Radio Club, 

Christchurch West Amateur Radio Club and the Canterbury Amateur 10 

Radio Development Society.   

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS SMITH:  Mōrena, I am Paula Smith for the Lyttelton Mt Herbert 15 

Community Board, submitter No 2354 and I just say that we don’t wish 

to be heard on this chapter. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Ms Smith. 

 20 

MR SNOEP:   My name is Otto Snoep, submitter 2067. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Snoep. 

 

MS STOCKMAN:   Good morning, my name is Caroline Stockman, submitter 25 

No 2056 for David and Caroline Stockman. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS FOOTE:   Good morning, my name is Melanie Foote, I am representing 30 

Avoca Valley Limited, submission 2473, and also the John Patterson 

Drive Submitter Group, submitter Nos 2474 through to 2478. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 35 

  [9.40 am] 

 

MR TURPIN:   Good morning, I am Jim Turpin, I am representing - - - 

 

SJH:   Sorry, the surname? 40 

 

MR TURPIN:   Turpin, T-u-r-p-i-n. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 45 
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MR TURPIN:   Representing the Taylors Mistake Association Land Company 

and, if he doesn’t turn up, the Taylors Mistake Association, our 

numbers are 2128 and 2192. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 5 

 

MS SEATON:   Hi, Kim Seaton for K Bush Road Limited and Brian Gillman 

Limited.   

 

SJH:   Thank you, Ms Seaton. 10 

 

MS THOMAS:   My name is Julia Thomas, submission No 2270, and I will be 

representing a group a residents from the Riccarton Bush area. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  When you say “a group of residents” is this an incorporate 15 

society or – right. 

 

MR BROWN:   Good morning, Mark Brown for the Arvida Group, submitter 

2334. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Brown. 

 

MR BROWN:   Thank you. 

 

MR PIERCEY:   Good morning, sir, Mark Piercey 2420. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR SINCLAIR:   I am Marton Sinclair, submitter No 2381, and I am 

appearing for myself. 30 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Sinclair. 

 

MR THOMSON:   Good morning, I am Paul Thomson, submitter 2750 

appearing for Highsted Developments Limited. 35 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Thomson. 

 

MR TINDALL:   Good morning, Rik Tindall, submitter 2485 for Cashmere 

Residents Association. 40 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Tindall. 

 

MS KIDDLE:   Good morning, Andrea Kiddle, submitter 2074, for myself. 

 45 

SJH:   Thank you. 
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MR McLAUGHLAN:   Matt McLaughlan here on behalf of Andrew Thomas 

No 2349 and Fletcher Residential Limited. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 5 

 

MR McCRACKEN:   Kim McCracken here on behalf of JR Hutton and 

Graham and Lillian Franks 2238 submission. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, McCracken.   10 

 

MS LOWE:   Helen Lowe, Thornspell Trust, submission 2308. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Ms Lowe. 

 15 

SJH:   That is all, thank you.  Well, as has been signalled, the first thing we will 

look at is the scope and definitions and an issues document has been 

filed by the Council and has been posted online and has been available 

to everybody.  So we will start, Ms Scott, have you got anything to add 

to the issues statement? 20 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir, good morning.  There is just a couple of things I 

would like to speak to.  The issues statement does seek some directions 

as to scope.  The first is the New Neighbourhood provisions which 

have been notified in this chapter. 25 

 

SJH:   New Neighbourhood provisions will be now in the New Neighbourhood 

section when the situation has been clarified.  So it will not form part of 

this chapter except to the extent, and I am not sure if this is quite 

addressed but the Riccarton Racecourse matter which is in single land 30 

ownership and may be able to be dealt with in this chapter.  What is the 

Council’s position on that? 

 

MS SCOTT:   As prepared in this memorandum the Riccarton Racecourse is 

New Neighbourhood land and I understand there has been discussions 35 

with the Crown about the Riccarton Racecourse and my understanding 

was at this point in time - - - 

 

SJH:   But it also involves Ngāi Tahu, doesn’t it? 

 40 

MS SCOTT:   It does involve Ngāi Tahu.  If there has been discussions that I 

am not aware of, I will pursue those and follow up with the Panel. 

 

SJH:   Some of the difficulties we are trying to address in New Neighbourhood 

is the multi-ownership problem, isn’t it, and we were just wondering to 45 

take some little pressure if we can, off the New Neighbourhood 
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hearing, which is growing like Topsy for obvious reasons, whether this 

being in single ownership could still remain in this particular chapter.  

Has any thought been given to that? 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, sir, not in terms of the ownership. 5 

 

SJH:   All right, well, look can I ask you to discuss that with the interested 

parties which are the Crown and Ngāi Tahu and any submitters and 

there is a pre-hearing on the New Neighbourhood zone next week and 

it can be addressed then.  So we will then slot it in wherever is most 10 

convenient, even though it is different Panels we would certainly be 

aligning our decisions in any event. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir, we will do that. 

 15 

SJH:   All right.   

 

 For the submitters in the back who may not know what this is about, in 

the residential chapter and the subdivision chapter the Panel in their 

hearings earlier ran into significant difficulties around the New 20 

Neighbourhood zone which are in the main greenfields priority 

subdivisions on the outskirts of the city. 

 

  [9.45 am] 

 25 

 A very comprehensive memorandum has been issued to parties and a 

decision made that the New Neighbourhood portions of the stage 1 

residential and subdivision should be heard together and there is a pre-

hearing Tuesday, 18 August.  If any of you submitters are interested in 

that you should also I think attend that pre-hearing meeting and where 30 

we talk about the Riccarton Racecourse, that is a special provision 

which has been notified in stage 2 for a New Neighbourhood within the 

confines of the Riccarton Racecourse, is that correct in the land sense? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, that is my understanding, sir. 35 

 

SJH:   So again if you have any interests in that you should also attend the pre-

hearing on the 18th.  Mr Carranceja, were is the Crown on the New 

Neighbourhood, Riccarton Racecourse and the issues generally? 

 40 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, in terms of the New Neighbourhood zone we are in 

a similar position as my learned friend here.  At this point in time the 

Crown was anticipating that all the New Neighbourhood zones would 

be considered in one hit, including Riccarton Racecourse, but we hear 

what you are saying, sir, and we will be considering that and we are 45 

happy to have dialogue with the Council and interested parties on that. 
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SJH:   It may be it has to stay in, but we are just trying to even the load out if 

you see what I mean. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Absolutely.  Look, we will take the single ownership 5 

point back, sir, and address you on that at the next pre-hearing on the 

New Neighbourhood zone, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 10 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Now, I am wondering whether my learned friend was 

finished addressing any other scope issues? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Just before that happens, Ms Scott, just in terms of the 

anticipation of when that New Neighbourhood zone matter may be 15 

heard, obviously the pre-hearing conference will deal with that, but it 

may well be that there is some time available from the time saved in 

regard to the stage 2 subdivision as of yesterday, so possibly coming in 

quite closely aligned with that and even back to back with that might 

work but we will have to confirm that through the Secretariat. 20 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, I take that on board. 

 

SJH:   I am sorry I thought you had finished but are there other scope issues 

that are not covered by your statement of issues? 25 

 

MS SCOTT:   There is just one issue, sir, and relates to the Residential 

Conservation zone which was a stage 1 zone and was deferred through 

the course of the stage 1 hearing into stage 2.  There is one policy that 

was addressed in stage 1 and that is policy 14.1.5.6 and that is heritage 30 

values in residential areas of Lyttelton and Akaroa.  This has just been 

raised with me this morning, sir, but it would seem sensible that that 

policy come over into the stage 2 hearing and I am happy to make a 

formal application if that is necessary. 

 35 

SJH:   All right, well, I was going to come back and suggest an amended 

statement of issues when we have gone through everybody else anyway 

so it can be included in that I think.   

 

MS SCOTT:   Okay. 40 

 

SJH:   And it may need a formal memorandum that an order can be made on 

but subject to what we hear from others, if there is no one opposing that 

I am quite happy to order now that that comes across and is considered 

in stage 2 residential subject to it being included in an amended 45 

statement of issues. 
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MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir, and the reason I raise it is that so it will be 

explicitly not addressed in your decision on stage 1.  Sir, just a couple 

of other points while I am on my feet, one is the Council’s list of 

witnesses. 5 

 

SJH:   I will come back to witnesses. 

 

MS SCOTT:   You will come back to that. 

 10 

SJH:   Yes, just try to keep them discrete if we can. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Okay, and in terms of the re-zonings, the submissions that have 

been made on this proposal, there are a number of re-zonings that are 

seeking a change away from Residential.  So they are seeking, for 15 

example, a Specific Purpose zone instead of a Residential zoning.  And 

at paragraph 9.3 of the statement of issues it is set out there that the 

Council considers that the evidence on those submissions should be 

brought to the chapter on the zoning that they are seeking.  And the 

Council is just wanting to bring to that the submitters’ attention and 20 

seek some certainty on that. 

 

  [9.50 am] 

 

SJH:   Well, these overlaps are always difficult and they can lead to things 25 

falling through the crack.  I think it would be better to deal with it on a 

case by case basis, but if evidence was produced in this chapter, and we 

agree with what the Council’s contending for here, that evidence can 

simply apply in the particular relevant chapter.  And I think if we did it 

that way we run less risk of something being missed. 30 

 

MS SCOTT:   Okay, I appreciate that, sir. 

 

SJH:   If you’re happy with that. 

 35 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, I am happy with that.  I mean the purpose of that request is 

to enable submitters just to be able to focus on one hearing.  They have 

been notified as Residential and they are seeking something else.  As a 

- - - 

 40 

SJH:   Yes, but if they are notified as Residential and they want something else 

it is rather understandable they would submit on this chapter not the 

chapter that they are wanting to go into. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes. 45 
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SJH:   So I think we just have to live with that otherwise we are going to have 

coding issues which we have had enough problems with already as you 

are more than aware, so I just want to avoid all those sorts of things and 

we can deal with it in the course of the hearing.  It might mean that 

people will have to attend twice but I think that is a consequence of 5 

avoiding any later problems. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Okay, thank you sir, that is all I have at the moment. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Is there anything else, Mr Carranceja, from the 10 

Crown’s perspective? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, I do have a few things I wish to note regarding 

the, about the scope issues and the statement of issues that was filed by 

the Council.   15 

 

 First, just in terms of scope issues, this is really a signal from yesterday.  

So yesterday I addressed you on a couple of discrete matters arising in 

a subdivision proposal that we were considering could be efficiently 

heard as part of the residential proposal.  We have had the 20 

reconsideration of that point last night and especially in light of Judge 

Hassan’s comment.  Our suggestion, sir, is that we won’t need to seek, 

if you like, a removal of some subdivision provisions into a Residential 

hearing, on the basis that if the Panel - - - 

 25 

SJH:  I am sorry, you won’t need or you will need? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   We won’t need to. 

 

SJH:   Right. 30 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  On the basis of essentially what Judge Hassan suggested 

which is if the Crown - - -  

 

SJH:   But that was the land use matters that we talked about - - - 35 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   It was minimum allotment sizes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 40 

MR CARRANCEJA:  If the Panel would be comfortable with the Crown 

witnesses as they give the residential evidence to note the correlation 

and relevance of the subdivision provisions yet to be heard and still 

give evidence that covers that in the residential hearing, then in the 

subdivision hearing we could simply cross refer to that which was 45 

already given. 
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SJH:   Oh, look, absolutely and I think we could go further and safely say 

unless there was an application to cross examine, in subdivision, we 

would be quite happy that they were excused attendance. 

 5 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Yes.  In which case that is two matters that I do not need 

to raise in the memorandum with you, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 10 

MR CARRANCEJA:   So that is the first scope issue.  Thank you, sir, for the 

indication that the New Neighbourhood Zone will be brought out of 

this proposal.   

 

 Now if I could turn please to the Council’s memorandum.  The first 15 

thing I would like to point out, sir, is there is a couple of definitions 

that the Crown has submitted on that we think is relevant to this 

chapter.  The two definitions are community activity and education 

activity.  So if it could be just added to the list in the Council’s 

memorandum I think that would - - - 20 

 

SJH:   So if it goes in the amended statement of issues? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes. 

 25 

SJH:   All right. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Absolutely.  So that is the first thing.  Now the second 

thing is there are about four, or I think five minor points that we would 

like to see amended in the Councils memorandum, counsel and 30 

statement of issues.  What I have actually done, sir, I have done a track 

change version which I can hand up but for the benefit of all the parties 

I can circulate this also and just read it out.  This is to assist the Council 

when preparing its revised memorandum, sir. 

 35 

 So if I could have these handed out please and then I will talk you 

through them.  The Council already has a copy of this. 

 

SJH:   The difficulty is with giving us this now, there are a whole lot of lay 

submitters here who have not seen this, Mr Carranceja - - - 40 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   All right, sir, but what I will do is I have got - - - 

 

SJH:   - - - you have got the opportunity.  Have we got an electronic version we 

can put on the screen? 45 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, at the very minor, this is really to assist the Council, 

but if I could - - - 

 

SJH:   Have we got an electronic version with the track changes we can put on 

the screen? 5 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No, sir.  I can arrange to have that done. 

 

SJH:   Well it is too late. 

 10 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   It is for now. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 15 

 

….:  I can do that now, sir. 

 

SJH:   But we have not got the electronic document. 

 20 

…..:   I can go and do a scanned copy and put it on the email right now. 

 

SJH:   We have not got time.  We have only got an hour for these pre-hearings. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, this will be very quick.  I actually thought that it 25 

would assist - - -  

 

SJH:   Well, just go straight to it. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Okay so on page 3, sir, we are looking at paragraph 30 

2.1(k). 

 

SJH:   So you want to add “and appendices” after “relevant matters”? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, because there are some appendices in the 35 

provisions that are quite important.  

 

SJH:   All right.  Noted. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   On page 5 looking at the bottom part of 2.8, this is 40 

where the Council seeks confirmation from the Hearings Panel that 

certain stage 2 provisions should be deferred into the New 

Neighbourhood Zone Provisions.  There is a list there. 
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  [9.55 am] 

 

 The Crown simply wants to point out that there are some stage 2 rules 

introduced into clause 14.6 that “refer to the New Neighbourhood 

Zone”; they should also be part of that deferral.  Just a matter of 5 

clarification, sir. 

 

SJH:   And that is all? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   A couple, there are a few more, on page 12, sir. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Presumably on that point the Council could report in its 

amended memorandum whether it agrees with that, in which case 

directions can be made accordingly - - -  

 15 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Absolutely, sir. 

 

SJH:   - - - or set out why it disagrees. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Absolutely, sir. 20 

 

SJH:   All right. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Now on page 12 of the original memorandum, we are 

looking at clause – sorry the statement of issues, it is page 12, 25 

paragraph 4.1.  Can we just try a quick scroll up a bit please.  4.1, 

previous page, I think.  Yes, it rolls from page 12 to 13. 

 

 If you look at 4.1.  Sir, this relates to this Residential Small Settlement 

Zone.  The Council’s memorandum simply says that no submissions 30 

have been made.  Actually all I wanted to point out, sir, the Crown has 

made a submission on all Small Settlement Zones.  And all that has 

sought to do is carry over two issues relating to the Small Settlement 

Zone that were set out in issue 7 and issue 9 because they are also 

relevant to small settlement zones like Kainga and Spencerville. 35 

 

 And the last issue, sir, is we want a new issue essentially 14, for the 

character area - - - 

 

SJH:   Well you want an amendment to line one of issue 13 and then a new 40 

issue. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, please.  An amendment to line 13, it should also 

refer to policies, and a new issue, and I will read it out for the benefit of 

all parties.  Is the intent of the Notified Residential Conservation Zone 45 

clearly expressed and appropriately reflected in the revised character 
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area overlay and associated provisions in the revised red line proposal 

contained in attachment E. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Have you had a chance to consider those or you 

want to come back to it at the finish, Ms Scott? 5 

 

MS SCOTT:   I was just given a copy at the start of the pre-hearing, sir, so we - 

- - 

 

SJH:   Come back to it after I have gone through everyone else? 10 

 

MS SCOTT:   I cannot see anything problematic in what I have just read. 

 

SJH:   Yes, but - - - 

 15 

MS SCOTT:   But if I spot anything I will let you know. 

 

SJH:   Have we managed to – have you scanned it in? 

 

MS……….:   No, sir (INDISTINCT 2.34) 20 

 

SJH:   Well I think we should and we will bring it up as I go through.  And, 

Ms Mehlhopt, any issues with the statement of issues? 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   No, sir. 25 

 

SJH:   Ms Crawford? 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   No, sir. 

 30 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Rogers? 

 

MR ROGERS:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Schiult? 35 

 

MR SCHIULT:   No sir, not specifically.  I guess the only question that I 

would have is just what the intention is for dealing with the site specific 

zoning, rezoning (INDISTINCT 3.04)  

 40 

SJH:   Well I thought we made it plain.  We will hear the evidence here and 

then if it is appropriate on an individual case by case basis we will 

transfer it to the relevant chapter and we will also transfer the evidence 

and unless there is a need for cross-examination we will excuse 

witnesses, because I understand why people would have submitted on 45 
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this chapter.  If we start playing with that now we are going to miss 

people out. 

 

MR SCHIULT:   Thank you sir.  In my client’s particular case it is actually a 

rural zone which he wants to have zoned residential rather than the 5 

other way round. 

 

SJH:   Well I think he should be here as well. 

 

MR SCHIULT:   Thank you. 10 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you Mr Schiult.  Mr Burke? 

 

MR BURKE:   No issues, sir. 

 15 

SJH:   Thank you, Ms Nicol? 

 

MS NICOL:   No sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Semple? 20 

 

MS SEMPLE:  Sir, just one matter just to lend support really to 

Mr Carranceja’s point around paragraph 2.8 of the Council’s 

memorandum about the New Neighbourhood Zone. 

 There are submitters in stage 2 who are not requesting a rezoning as 25 

such to New Neighbourhood who have been notified as New 

Neighbourhood but who have concerns and have submitted on the 

provisions of that zone.  So just ensuring that the directions will cover 

those submitters as well. 

 30 

 Thank you, no other issues. 

 

SJH:   Ms Robinson? 

 

MS ROBINSON:   The Commodore Hotel and Ilogan Trust are both happy 35 

with the scope of issues.  There is one point to raise for the submission 

on behalf of Christ College and McVicar.  In attachment B of the 

memorandum it outlined agreements that had been reached at informal 

mediation with the Council and I just wish to raise or to record that our 

client has also reached an agreement with the Council and that has been 40 

to remove the residential large lot (INDISTINCT 5.00) 

 

SJH:   That is fine, just file a joint memorandum. 

 

MS ROBINSON:   Yes, okay. 45 
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  [10.00 am] 

 

SJH:   And it can be by email, but it needs to be joint, that’s all. 

 

MS ROBINSON:   Okay, thank you, sir. 5 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Professor Bagchi? 

 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   No, sir. 

 10 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Christiansen? No?   Ms Broughton? 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   I have just got a question, sir, are we planning to have 

mediation? 

 15 

SJH:   Yes, I mentioned that earlier and we’ll come to the dates in a moment.  

Ms Aston? 

 

MS ASTON:   No, sir. 

 20 

SJH:   Ms Dysart? 

 

MS DYSART:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr van der Wahl? 25 

 

MR VAN DER WAHL:   Sir, I just have one question of clarification.  Is the 

Panel now addressing all the issues or is the Panel still looking to get to 

issue 22, because that is a matter simply that I - - - 

 30 

SJH:  Could you speak u a little please? 

 

MR VAN DER WAHL:   I beg your pardon, that is a matter that I consider 

would be relevant in terms of scope in determining what evidence may 

be brought, particularly in my view that is a matter that is relevant in 35 

terms of some legal argument, which may be able to narrow the scope 

of the evidence that needs to be brought. 

 

 Specifically, whether this Panel would be able to rezone little parts of 

residential lots that sit outside the metropolitan urban limits to 40 

residential while not being contrary to or not failing to give effect to the 

regional policy statement, and, sir, that would certainly narrow down 

some of the evidence and effect my position, sir. 
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SJH:   It is best to be dealt with in the round I think, Mr van der Wahl, not have 

preliminary arguments and the comments I made earlier equally apply 

here. 

 

MR VAN DER WAHL:   Thank you, sir. 5 

 

SJH:   Mr O’Donnell? 

 

MR O’DONNELL:   Nothing on the issue statement, thank you, sir. 

 10 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Joel? 

 

MR JOEL:  No issues, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Cameron?  Mr Sadders?  15 

 

MR SADDERS:   No issues, sir, there’s no issues on that. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Simcock? 

 20 

MR SIMCOCK:   No issues, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Poulton? 

 

MR POULTON:   No, I am fine, thank you. 25 

 

MR HARDING:   No issues, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Harding.  Ms Hart? 

 30 

MS HART:   At this stage I guess I am a little confused still as to when we will 

be required to produce evidence for which hearing I guess, but I am 

assuming that is going to be clear once the - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, I think I made it plain that it is coming in this one, but it may be 35 

transferred over to another one if that is appropriate. 

 

MS HART:   All right, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Mr Porter? 40 

 

MR PORTER:   No issues. 

 

SJH:  Thank you.  Mr Sullivan? 

 45 
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MR SULLIVAN:   Yes, sir, just one matter.  Our submissions are substantially 

in relation to Chapter 11, but the outcome of that will have an effect on 

parts of Chapter 14, so I guess I am seeking clarification since this 

chapter is first, whether we prepare and submit on the basis of largely 

what we’re going to say in Chapter 11 for Chapter 14 as well? 5 

 

SJH:   Well, that is very much your decision, isn’t it?  We are hearing this one 

first.   

 

MR SULLIVAN:   Yes, sir. 10 

 

SJH:   I know what I would be doing if I was safeguarding my position, but 

that’s for you to make your own decision on. 

 

MR SULLIVAN:   Yes, sir. 15 

 

SJH:   Ms Smith? 

 

MS SMITH:   No issues. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Snoep? 

 

MR SNOEP:   No, nothing, sir.   

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Stockman?  Ms Stockman, I am sorry I didn’t take that 25 

down, I just took the name. 

 

MS STOCKMAN:   Yes, no, I apologise too, I am a little bit deaf, so I didn’t 

hear the name.  Just one clarification please, we are listed as requiring a 

rezone from rural urban fringe to residential large lot, but in our 30 

submission we proposed a couple of options, one which – that is one 

option and the other was rezone parts that are not in the floor level and 

fill management and flood ponding areas from rural urban fringe to 

residential large lot, so it was just that we have been listed as - - - 

 35 

SJH:   So what is the question? 

 

MS STOCKMAN:   We have been listed simply as requesting one blanket 

change. 

 40 

SJH:   And you are suggesting two? 

 

MS STOCKMAN:   Yes, that there are two options. 
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  [10.05 am] 

 

SJH:   Well, that is for you to come and submit on and adduce evidence on.   

 

MS STOCKMAN:   Yes. 5 

 

SJH:   But there will be the chance for mediation before that, or even before 

then you can talk to the Council.  Were you about to - - - 

 

MS STOCKMAN:   Well, we have spoken to the Council already and they said 10 

we need to present that here today. 

 

SJH:   Right.   

 

MS STOCKMAN:   That was all. 15 

 

SJH:   Were you going to say something Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:  Sir, I was just going to say we can clarify that in the revised 

statement of issues. 20 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.   

 

MS STOCKMAN:   Thank you. 

 25 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Foote? 

 

MS FOOTE:   Sir, no issues, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Turpin? 30 

 

MR TURPIN:   I am good, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Okay, Ms Seaton? 

 35 

MS SEATON:   No issues, thank you. 

 

SJH:  Ms Thomas? 

 

MS THOMAS:   No issues, thanks.   40 

 

SJH:   Mr or Ms Brown? Mr Brown? 

 

MR BROWN:   No issues. 

 45 
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SJH:  I am sorry, this simply wasn’t written down for me in the plan.  Mr 

Pearse, is it? 

 

MR PEARSE:   No issues, thank you. 

 5 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Sinclair? 

 

MR SINCLAIR:   No issues, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Thomson? 10 

 

MR THOMSON:   No issues, thank you. 

 

SJH:  Thank you.  Mr Tindall? 

 15 

MR TINDALL:   No issues, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Ms Keddell? 

 

MS KEDDELL:   No issues, thanks. 20 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr McLachlan? 

 

MR McLACHLAN:   No, sir. 

 25 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr McCracken? 

 

MR McCRACKEN:   No issues, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr McCracken.  Ms Lowe? 30 

 

MS LOWE:   Thank you.  No issues for the scope of issues, but I did have a 

question about the process if that is all right?  When the material came 

on Tuesday I had understood that the mediation was to follow this pre-

hearing, but in the areas that I have submitted on there is already quite 35 

significant changes shown as a result of mediation or negotiation, so I 

just wanted to understand that part of the process.   

 

SJH:   Well, I imagine that is where submitters have approached the Council 

directly and the Council have agreed changes, that is for us to be 40 

convinced they are correct of course after the hearing, but there are 

dates set down for mediation later in August which you will be able to 

attend.   

 

MS LOWE:   Yes, so that process isn’t closed off at this stage? 45 
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SJH:   So it has not been a formal mediation process, and the mediation 

process, I will come to the dates in a moment, but that is not closed off, 

definitely not. 

 

MS LOWE:   Yes, all right, thank you for that clarification.   5 

 

MS SCOTT:   Can I also clarify, sir, the changes that have been made are also 

just in response to the submissions received and considering them as 

well as informal discussions. 

 10 

SJH:   So there is no discussion, it is just been on the written submission? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Some have, there have been some discussions and some are just 

for consideration in submissions.   

 15 

SJH:   So just the standard process? 

 

MS SCOTT:   That is correct, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you, Ms Scott.  Thank you.  So an amended statement of 20 

issues, Ms Scott, when could you have that by? 

 

MS SCOTT:   We can have that, is Tuesday next week okay? 

 

SJH:   Close of business Tuesday? 25 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   And it will be posted online for submitters’ benefits.   

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Scott, would that be able to be accompanied by a 

version of the updated provisions with the New Neighbourhood Zone 

provisions retracted out just to help clarification for people to 

understand that, is that going to be a problem? 

 35 

MS SCOTT:   I understand they are already out, I think, but I will confirm that. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, no, thank you. 

 

MS SCOTT:   And just to clarify, and I think this is similar to the subdivision 40 

pre-hearing yesterday, the list of definitions does include some 

definitions which only relate to the New Neighbourhood Zone, so we 

will retract those. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Now, mediation, which people have been asking about, that 45 

will be facilitated by Environment Court Commissioner Mr Mills and 
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will take place on Thursday the 20th and Friday the 21st August.  

Expert conferencing, which will be facilitated by Environment Court 

Commissioner Mr Sutherland, will take place on Thursday the 

13th August.  A redline version of the chapter to be filed by Council on 

Monday the 3rd August.  Is that suitable? 5 

 

MS SCOTT:   It is already been filed, sir.   

 

SJH:   It has already been filed, right.  Well, you are well ahead of the 

schedule, aren’t you, which is good.  Now, before I set down the dates 10 

for the filing of evidence, I will just run through a number of 

memorandum have indicated the number of witnesses, but we’ll just 

run through that from the Council’s point of view, Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, we have Mr Chris Gregory listed in our memorandum, his 15 

evidence was to do with the New Neighbourhood, so we can cross him 

off the list, but otherwise it is just as set out in the memorandum. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Carranceja? 

 20 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, with the deferral of the New Neighbourhood 

Zone provisions we have six witnesses, sir.  The first witness will be an 

urban design amenity expert dealing with the character areas.  Second 

witness will be a planner specifically commenting on the character 

areas.  The third witness will be a planning expert for the Housing New 25 

Zealand Corporation, and the fourth will be a planner briefly dealing 

with New Zealand Fire Service Issues. The last two witnesses, sir, will 

be a planner dealing with the structure and policy framework of the 

proposal, and the remaining planner will cover all the other issues 

raised in the Crown submission, sir. 30 

 

  [10.10 am] 

 

SJH:   All right.  Thank you. 

 35 

MR CARRENCEJA:   Thank you.   

 

SJH:   Perhaps just at this stage I should repeat what we have done in all of 

these pre-hearings, that where witnesses are being called to give 

evidence, the same witnesses from stage 1 or different witnesses giving 40 

the same evidence, we do not expect it to be set out in full, we expect it 

to be cross-referenced back to that evidence for reasons of efficiency, 

and we would also expect that there is just a listing of the superior 

documents, unless there is some specific point to be made.  So what we 

are interested in is new evidence that should be stressed. 45 

 



 Page 24 

  

PHC:  CH14 Residential (Part) 07.08.15 

 Just one other comment, because it has occurred in earlier chapters 

where witnesses for one submitter have not actually talked to each 

other which has caused a level of confusion, so we don’t expect that to 

happen again.  So with those comments, some of you will have heard it, 

some of it will be new to you.  Mr Rogers? 5 

 

MR ROGERS:   Four, sir, a company representative, planner, infrastructure 

engineer, and an expert addressing character and amenity issues.   

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Schiult? 10 

 

MR SCHIULT:   A planner and the submitter himself, sir.   

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Burke? 

 15 

MR BURKE:   A planner and submitter, and perhaps a landscape architect, sir, 

I will know by Monday if that is the case.  I am sorry I can’t be more - - 

-  

 

SJH:   If you can notify us by close of business Monday? 20 

 

MR BURKE:   Yes, sir.   

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Nicol? 

 25 

MS NICOL:   The airport and port will each be calling a planning, noise and 

company witness.  Orion will have a planning and company witness 

and Waterloo will have a planner.   

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Semple? 30 

 

MS SEMPLE:   Yes, sir.  Kauri Lodge will have a planning witness, and Carter 

Group will have a planning witness.  Do you want to know about 

Riccarton Racecourse?   Riccarton Racecourse is likely to have a 

planning witness, a transport witness - - -  35 

 

SJH:   Who are you appearing for in - - -  

 

MS SEMPLE:   Well Riccarton Racecourse Trustees and Ngāi Tahu Property, 

the joint venture. 40 

 

SJH:   Right, okay, yes. 

 

MS SEMPLE:   So they would likely have a planning witness, a transportation 

witness, and perhaps a client representative.   45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Just on that matter, presumably there would be another 

issue statement in regard to Riccarton Racecourse, would that be 

correct?  Because I don’t see those issues covered off at this stage in 

the Council’s memorandum.   

 5 

MS SEMPLE:   Correct.  I think perhaps it was anticipated that it would be part 

of the new neighbourhood zone.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Right.  Okay, so we might want to give some thought to 

how that might be done between the two parties and put before us.   10 

 

SJH:   I think if it is addressed at the new neighbourhood zone then the 

decision could be made there.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Oh it could be done, yes, it could be folded into that.   15 

 

SJH:   It is folded into the new neighbour/subdivision/whatever hearing and a 

decision can be made at that pre-hearing whether it can be carved out 

and left in residential, or whether it slots in there, okay? 

 20 

MS SEMPLE:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   So the pre-hearing meeting next week would be where we would deal 

with that.  Thank you. 

 25 

MS SEMPLE:   Yes, sir.  Thank you.   

 

SJH:   Ms Robinson? 

 

MS ROBINSON:   Yes, thank you, sir.  The Commodore Hotel will call a 30 

planning witness and my other clients will not be calling expert 

evidence.   

 

SJH:   All right.  Just before we go back to submitters, for the benefit of 

submitters who haven’t been in the process previously, you are entitled 35 

to give evidence yourself, or to call evidence, or alternatively you are 

entitled to speak to your submission at that hearing.  If you give 

evidence it means you will be sworn in the witness box and somebody 

may apply to cross-examine.  So I’ll just go through and you can 

indicate whether you are going to call witnesses or give evidence 40 

yourself, or simply rely on a submission. 

 

 So starting with you, Ms Aston – we have got a number of professional 

ones along this row as well as lay submitters. 

 45 
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MS ASTON:   So Cathedral City Developments and Rock Hill, planning, 

landscape architect, infrastructure, geotech and possibly 

surveying/urban design.  Bassett and Talbot, planning.  The remainder, 

we may not need to give evidence depending on the negotiations.   

 5 

SJH:   Is there the opportunity for your clients to combine witnesses?  Because 

that is something we have made plain all along.  If possible we would 

prefer it.   

 

MS ASTON:  So yes, there are combined witnesses, but presumably they will 10 

still do separate statements of evidence? 

 

SJH:   Well if the evidence is the same they don’t need to.   

 

MS ASTON:   Okay, right.  Yes. 15 

 

SJH:   If the evidence is different, yes. 

 

MS ASTON:   Yes, absolutely.   

 20 

SJH:   But one would hope that experts weren’t giving different evidence for 

different clients, Ms Aston.   

 

  [10.015 am] 

 25 

MS ASTON:   Right.  Yes, okay.  Yes, where we can do that, where there is 

the same issue overlapped clients, that is the intention.   

 

SJH:   Right. 

 30 

MS ASTON:   So just to clarify the remaining ones, which is Burrell Survus, 

RBB Limited, and Jeremy Thomas, are possibly a planner and possibly 

a lay evidence for Gill Burrell.   

 

SJH:   Can you confirm by close of business on Monday? 35 

 

MS ASTON:   It largely depends on ongoing discussions with the Council and 

what comes out of mediation.  

 

SJH:   Well it is simply enough to confirm who your witnesses will be. 40 

 

MS ASTON:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   But if you reach agreement you simply withdraw them. 

 45 

MS ASTON:   Okay, yes, we can do that.   
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SJH:   I can promise you there will be no trouble getting leave for that.   

 

MS ASTON:   Absolutely.  Thank you. 

 5 

SJH:   All right. Ms Dysart? 

 

MS DYSART:   Sir, I intend to speak to my own submission.  I did indicate on 

the submission that I would have photographs, and I am happy to file 

those before if that would assist. 10 

 

SJH:   It would be helpful, but yes, we look forward to that, thank you.  Mr 

Van Der Wahl? 

 

MR VAN DER WAHL:   Your Honour, I intend to give evidence for myself.  15 

Hopefully I will be able to make an application to withdraw that, but I 

give the indication at this stage, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr O’Donnell? 

 20 

MR O’DONNELL:   I intend to speak to my submission.  I am also aware of 

two related submissions from the same - - -  

 

SJH:   You are representing a group? 

 25 

MR O’DONNELL:   I am, yes.   

 

SJH:   It is a new group, we know the history of the ones that have appeared 

previously, so it would be helpful in that submission if you set out 

whether it is an incorporated society, what its objectives are, the 30 

membership of it, its aims et cetera, so that we can have a full 

understanding of that.   

 

MR O’DONNELL:   I can do that, sir.  Yes. 

 35 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR O’DONNELL:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Mr Joel? 40 

 

MR JOEL:   Thank you, sir.  The Christchurch Methodist Central Mission, 

Jiang Nan Investments Limited and Top Maple Investments Limited 

will all be calling a planning witness.   

 45 

SJH:   Thank you.  Professor Bagchi? 
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PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   So we will present our evidence by ourselves.   

 

SJH:   So how many witnesses will be you be calling? 

 5 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   We will not be having witnesses.   

 

SJH:   So just speaking to the submissions? 

 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   Speaking to the submissions.   10 

 

SJH:   Thank you 

 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   Thank you. 

 15 

SJH:   Ms Broughton? 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Thank you.  Speaking to the submission, thank you.   

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Kristenssen? 20 

 

MR KRISTENSSEN:   Sir, we will be speaking to our submission. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Cameron? 

 25 

MR CAMERON:   Yes, sir.  I shall be giving evidence and presenting 

submissions.   

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 30 

MR ………:   Thank you, sir, I will be speaking to my submission and it will 

include photographic evidence.   

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Simcock? 

 35 

MR SIMCOCK:   Sir, our current discussions with the Council are going quite 

favourably, but subject to the outcome of those I will be appearing on 

behalf of Virginia Simcock at the hearing. 

 

SJH:   As evidence or submissions? 40 

 

MR SIMCOCK:   As submission.   

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 45 

MR SIMCOCK:   Thank you.   
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SJH:   Mr Poulton? 

 

MR POULTON:   Morning, sir.  I don’t have any expert witness, but I would 

like to speak on my own behalf at the meeting.   5 

 

SJH:   As evidence or as a submission? 

 

MR POULTON:   Just as evidence really.   

 10 

SJH:   That is fine, thank you. 

 

MR POULTON:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Mr Harding? 15 

 

MR HARDING:   Sir, we have no expert witness and we will speak to our 

submission. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Harding.  Ms Hart? 20 

 

MS HART:   For Somerset Group, there will be just a planner.  For Sunnypoint 

Estate there will be a planner and a landscape architect.  And for Mr 

Shadbolt there will be a planner, landscape architect and Mr Shadbolt 

just to speak to his submission. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Porter? 

 

MR PORTER:   Hello.  I will be speaking to my own submission and my 

neighbours, the Stockmans, will have a similar submission, so their 30 

witnesses may actually relate to my submission. 

 

SJH:   So we will come to them, and see if they are calling evidence and that, 

but you can adopt their evidence by agreement with them of course, 

you will have to get agreement, but you can adopt their evidence if that 35 

is what you wish to do, okay? 

 

MR PORTER:   Yes.   

 

SJH:   Mr Sullivan? 40 

 

MR SULLIVAN:   Yes, sir.  No expert evidence.  I will speak to the 

submission. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Smith? 45 
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MS SMITH:   I would like to change my mind and I will speak to our 

submission on this chapter, about 10 minutes.   

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Snoep? 

 5 

MR SNOEP:   I will be giving evidence myself if becomes necessary. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Stockman?   

 

  [10.20 am] 10 

 

MS STOCKMAN:   We will be speaking to our submission and I apologise, I 

am not sure, we have someone from Baseline Group attending.  I am 

not sure if he is regarded as a witness or speaks to - - - 

 15 

SJH:   Well is he going to give sworn evidence or just simply speak to - - - 

 

MS STOCKMAN:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   If it is sworn evidence? 20 

 

MS STOCKMAN:   I guess, yes. 

 

SJH:   Well you can reserve your position. 

 25 

MS STOCKMAN:   I will reserve my position. 

 

SJH:   So we will say one witness but if that changes you just need to let the 

Secretariat know. 

 30 

MS STOCKMAN:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Okay. 

 

MS STOCKMAN:   Yes 35 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Foote? 

 

MS FOOTE:   Sir, for the John Paterson Drive submitter group we will be 

calling a planner and an engineer, and for Avoca Valley Limited a 40 

planner and also an engineer. 

 

SJH:  And again I take it you will be looking at combing, using the same 

witness? 

 45 

MS FOOTE:  They are completely separate groups and parts of the submission. 
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SJH:   Well just consider, if they are giving the same kind of evidence, whether 

it is necessary to call two. 

 

MS FOOTE:   Sure. 5 

 

SJH:   Okay.  Mr Turpin? 

 

MR TURPIN:   Hello again.  With regards this morning’s memorandum at 2.4 

there is a suggestion that the major part of our theme will be held over 10 

until stage 3, which we concur, we agree that that is the wise thing to 

do.  If that happens we will not have to give evidence on it.  If it does 

not happen of course we will give evidence.   

 

SJH:   And if it does, how many witnesses would it be? 15 

 

MR TURPIN:   Three possibly. 

 

SJH:   Okay well we will reserve the right.  We will note it as three witnesses 

but if it is held over you can withdraw those, that is fine. 20 

 

MR TURPIN:   There is one item, though in addition to that which I am sure 

that we can clear up, if this is held over we can clear up in mediation. 

 

SJH:   All right.  Ms Seaton? 25 

 

MS SEATON:   Thank you sir.  K Bush’s interests are purely in relation to the 

New Neighbourhood Zone provisions, particularly the ODPs so if they 

are being pulled over we will have no need to appear at this hearing. 

 30 

SJH:   Okay, thank you.  Ms Thomas? 

 

MS THOMAS:   Thank you.  Yes, somebody from our group would like to 

speak to the submission but we will not be calling any witnesses. 

 35 

SJH:   Thank you Ms Thomas.  Mr Brown? 

 

MR BROWN:   Just confirming a company representative expert evidence 

from planner, a design witness and a landscape architect.  Thank you. 

 40 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Piercey? 

 

MR PIERCEY:   We will be speaking to the submission. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Sinclair? 45 
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MR SINCLAIR:   I will be speaking to my submission but will not be calling 

any expert witnesses. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Thompson? 

 5 

MR THOMPSON:   Isaac Developments Limited submission is solely in 

relation to the Residential New Neighbourhood Zone so - - - 

 

SJH:   So it would be in that other chapter? 

 10 

MR THOMPSON:   Yes, it will. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Mr Kidell? 

 

MR KIDDELL:   Sir we will be speaking to our submission. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr McLachlan?  Ms McLachlan, sorry. 

 

MS MCLACHLAN:   Speaking to the submission and potentially one witness.  

I will confirm that on Monday. 20 

 

SJH:   All right.  Well we will say one witness but if you are not going to call it 

just advise the Secretariat, okay? 

 

MS MCLACHLAN:   Okay, thanks. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr McCracken? 

 

MR MCLAUCHLAN:   Oh, no - - - 

 30 

SJH:   I am sorry, Mr McLauchlan, I have got out of order here. 

 

MR MCLAUCHLAN:   Yes.  No, that is all right.  On behalf of Mr Thomas we 

are likely to call a civil/geotech engineer and a planner. 

 35 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr McCracken? 

 

MR MCCRACKEN:   One planning witness and the submitter will be speaking 

on behalf of themselves. 

 40 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr McCracken, and Ms Lowe? 

 

MS LOWE:   I will be presenting evidence in support of my submission.  If 

there is potential for timing difficulties when do we deal with that? 

 45 

SJH:   What kind of timing difficulties? 
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MS LOWE:   Well I saw from the instructions that were issued that the hearing 

is likely to start on the 7th of September and unfortunately I am 

committed to a business thing in Australia in that week, 7th to 11th. 

 5 

SJH:   Well we will come to that when we set the dates. 

 

MS LOWE:   Yes, thank you. 

 

SJH:   I am sure we can shuffle it around to work for you.  All right, well thank 10 

you for that.  Yes, Ms Mehlhopt? 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Sorry, sir, just in terms of evidence for the Regional 

Council on the joint further submission of the Regional Council-

District Council thing Ngai Tahu, that is where the submission was 15 

lodged on submissions seeking a review or removal of the 50 dBA 

airport noise contour.  And I understand from the City’s memorandum 

and discussion with the City that that will not be dealt with as part of 

this proposal.  So therefore no involvement will be required on that 

matter. 20 

 

  [10.25 am] 

 

SJH:   Yes.  I am not sure that where people think we have the jurisdiction to 

remove it given what is clearly in the RPS, we may be able to move the 25 

line, and that is a matter for argument, but to remove it completely, I 

am not sure the RPS actually allows us but that is something to be 

argued later and yes it will be in a later stage. 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, sir.  And I agree there is a jurisdictional issue there.  30 

In relation to the Regional Council’s submission it has only sought to 

be heard on a very limited point in terms of rezoning of land at Awatea, 

that was discussed in the Commercial, previous meetings to date and it 

is not anticipated that evidence will be lodged. 

 35 

SJH:   I probably jumped over you because I was not expecting you to call a 

witness anyway, Ms Mehlhopt.  Sorry Ms Crawford, we missed one 

table out. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   That is fine sir.  So Castle Rock, same list of witnesses as 40 

indicated to the Panel.  I do not propose to repeat that from yesterday.  

What I would say is that affects two discrete sites, so it is submitter 

2168 and 2169, held in common ownership but have their own issues.  

We will be sharing witnesses across sites but we are proposing separate 

briefs because the issues are not aligned.  We will ensure it is as 45 

efficient as possible and very succinct. 
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SJH:   Well it can be in one brief cut into sections. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Well if that is applicable to the Panel - - - 

 5 

SJH:   That would be acceptable. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   - - - we are comfortable with that. 

 

SJH:   Yes, if it is common ownership it would be sensible to do that I think. 10 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Thank you sir. 

 

SJH:   And common witnesses. 

 15 

MS CRAWFORD:   And in fact sir I did not note yesterday, it may be that the 

landowners give a brief lay statement and that would be one brief as 

well to provide background to the proposals. 

 

SJH:   All right. 20 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   And just another procedural matter, and I have discussed 

this with my friend for the Council, Ms Scott.  At 3.1(b) of the 

memorandum Mr Andrew Craig is signalled as a landscape architect.  

In the interests of early disclosure Mr Jeremy Head is proposed to be 25 

called by Castle Rock Limited.  They are both in the same consultancy.  

They are obviously both dealing with landscape.  What I am not aware 

of is whether Mr Craig will be dealing with this site specific rezoning  

It has only just come to my attention. 

 30 

 I am confident that the witnesses will also adhere to the code but I 

appreciate previous discussions we have had on this point and I 

appreciate whether the Panel wishes to discuss it further or perhaps test 

the witnesses when they are in the - - - 

 35 

SJH:   Well it is a matter for Council as we said previously but I would be 

discussing it with the Council and seeing where you get to. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Thank you sir. 

 40 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Council evidence by 18 August, Ms Scott.  

Submitter evidence by the 27th of August.  Rebuttal evidence by the 

1st of September .  Now we do have a standard procedure for hearings, 

which lays down that expert witnesses or any witness, the evidence is 

pre-read and we expect from the witness a 10 minute highlights 45 

package which I stress is not simply reading the executive summary.  It 
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is a true highlights package of the issues.  If however it is felt by any 

particular party that their witness needs longer than that 10 minutes, 

they may make application for an extended time and it will be 

considered. 

 5 

 Our Order in Council requires that anyone cross-examining witnesses 

must apply, it is not an automatic right.  So a leave application would 

need to be made by any party including the lay submitters if they wish 

to question witnesses.  Again the limit that is set down in the 

procedural document is 10 minutes.  If any party, any lay submitter, 10 

anyone else, thinks they need longer than that 10 minutes they simply 

make application and indicate the time that they consider they will 

require. 

 

 Applications for leave to cross-examine need to be filed by Wednesday 15 

the 2nd of September by 12 pm.  The evidence, as we have indicated is 

pre-circulated.  If you wish to serve by the website it will be required to 

be filed with the Secretariat by 3 pm on or before the last day for the 

filing of evidence.  If it is after that you will have to serve directly.  The 

onus to serve remains with the parties, not with the Secretariat.  If 20 

anyone finds themselves in difficulty meeting the timelines and wish to 

file documents late you may make application and seek leave 

explaining the reasons for the delay and it will be dealt with by the 

Panel. 

 25 

 Legal submissions – we expect as usual brief openings.  If parties want 

to rely on written openings leave is so granted and they just need to 

indicate through the Secretariat.  It would be helpful if those are filed 

three working days before the hearing. 

 30 

  [10.30 am] 

 

 Closing legal, again, as we have done previously in other chapters, we 

accept them to be somewhat more fulsome.  Again, if parties wish to 

rely on written legal submissions and not appear, leave is so granted 35 

and you should notify the Secretariat.  Those speaking to closing 

submissions will need to file them by 3 pm the day prior to 

presentation. 

 

 The hearing dates set aside for this are the week of Monday, 40 

7 September to 11 September, and 14 September to 18 September.  So 

the Secretariat will note – I am sorry, was it Ms Lowe that had the 

difficulty – and make sure that you are slotted in the second week, Ms 

Lowe.   

 45 
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 Could I just stress that there will be timetables issued.  They are 

indicative only.  We have found that while when we start the full days 

seem to be used up, people seem to run out of steam by the time we get 

to the second week and we get through witnesses rather more quickly, 

so if you are set down, make sure you are here early.  Don’t assume 5 

that because the indicative time is 11.45 am you won’t be on earlier 

because to date we have had to have the Secretariat chasing people 

around on cell phone, which is most unsatisfactory. 

 

 There is a friend of submitter who is sitting there now.  Any lay 10 

submitter who has any queries or questions or are unsure about the 

process, what they should include in their submissions or their 

evidence, if you take the opportunity before you leave today to speak to 

the friend of submitter, he will assist you. 

 15 

 Now, does anyone have anything else they wish to raise before we 

adjourn?  Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sorry, sir, I do.  One of the submitters quite rightly reminded me 

that I haven’t addressed you on the deferral of the residential back 20 

zone, which we have requested in our statement of issues.  So that I can 

update the chapter appropriately on Tuesday, I just wondered if you 

would be able to confirm the direction that is sought there now.  I note 

that the submitter agreed that it was sensible. 

 25 

SJH:   We will grant, we will so order that it is deferred to Stage  , so that will 

answer your concerns as well at Taylor’s Mistake. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you very much, sir. 

 30 

SJH:   Okay.  Anyone else got anything to raise?  All right, thank you, we will 

adjourn until the next pre-hearing, which is Transport at 11 am. 

 

ADJOURNED [10.33 am] 


